
Town Board Minutes- July 13, 2015 

TOWN BOARD MEETING FOR WATERFORD  
APPROVED/OFFICIAL MINUTES FOR JULY 13, 2015 

5:30 PM AT TOWN HALL 
 

1. Town Board meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM by Chairman Hincz.  Present: Supervisors Alvey, 
Draskovich, Gauerke, Attorney Dubis and residents of the Town.  Supervisor Szeklinski was absent. 

  
2. Chairman Hincz led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
3. Printed Minutes:  Chairman Hincz clarified that the special meeting minutes to be approved are June 17th, not 

15th as printed on the agenda.  Supervisor Draskovich motioned to approve the Town Board meeting minutes 
dated June 8, 2015, Special meeting minutes dated June 8th, June 12th and June 17th, 2015 as printed, with the 
correction on June 17th, 2015, the motion to adjourn was carried by a 4-0 vote vs. a 5-0 vote, seconded by 
Supervisor Gauerke:  4-0.  Motion carried. 

 
4. Treasurer Report/Payment of Claims- Chairman Hincz read the Treasurer’s report.  Supervisor Gauerke 

motioned to approve the claims as presented seconded by Supervisor Alvey:  4-0.  Motion carried.   
 
5. Correspondence:   

-DNR reported an A+ on the evaluation of the Town’s recycling program 
-Multiple emails to Chief Ditscheit regarding exemplary police service by Officers Demarrasse, Halliday, 
Littmann and Chesen. 
-Copy of letter from Eagle Lake Property Owners Imp. Assoc. regarding new invasive species (Starry 
Stonewart). 
-Correspondence from Racine Co. to Jasser, 6740 Burma, regarding renting their home as a vacation rental 
and that the zoning does not allow for it.  
 

6. Committee Reports: 
(a) Police Dept. Report- Sgt. Johnson reported increased activity/calls, which is typical during the summer.         
(b) Tichigan Vol. Fire Co.- Chief Wagner stated he did not have anything to report.  Chairman Hincz asked 

when the next TVFC was.  Chief Wagner replied they meet on the fourth Tuesday of each month, but would 
like to meet with the Chairman in the near future.   

(c) WWMD- Ted Derse reported that the weeds were really bad this year and that $70,000 was spent on the 
first spray and they were doing the second spray that day.  Derse stated they would probably run out of 
money.  Derse stated they had 18 divers pulling the weeds in conservancy bay and that the water was too 
shallow for harvesting/cutting.  Derse reported that he felt the conduct of attendees for the 4th of July 
fireworks was really good, especially for the amount of people/boats on the lake.  Derse stated they counted 
326 boats.  Derse stated that the WWMD would help post signs for Starry Stonewart.  Board ok with 
WWMD posting signs.  Supervisor Draskovich asked if the weeds from the weed pull were sitting the road 
right-of-way.  Dick Kosut replied that it was in the cul-de-sac.  Supervisor Draskovich stated he felt it was a 
safety issue and asked what they were going to do to remove. Dick Kosut replied that the DPW had picked 
it up when they did Buena Lake two years prior and that he called the Town, but did not get a response, but 
still went ahead since they had all the volunteers gathered to help.  Chairman Hincz apologized for not 
getting back to Kosut and requested the DPW pick up this time and then have some agreement established 
for the future.  Chairman Hincz stated that the service was eliminated years ago and feels if other people see 
the Town picking up; they are going to want the service as well.  Supervisor Draskovich stated that where 
the weeds are now present safety concerns.  Supervisor Alvey stated that it was a miscommunication and 
that the DPW should move forward and take care of.  Supervisor Gauerke stated he feels that since this 
project benefits everyone on the water vs. any one person and that the help is from volunteers that the Town 
should do what they can to accommodate. 



Town Board Minutes- July 13, 2015 

(d) Park- Ken Hinz reported that the picnic tables were finished and total cost was about $2,700.  Hinz stated he 
was going to contact McKay’s Nursery to see if they would like to sponsor a sign.  Chairman Hincz stated 
that the weeds and dead trees in Fox Water Bay were still an issue and would like a final letter sent out 
stating the Town will clean up and bill them.  Hinz stated he had spoken with a few people on it.  Hinz 
stated he will follow up.    

(e) Road Dept. – Ken Hinz reported that Fahrner did a great job on the slag seal.  Hinz also stated that Mercury 
Waste Solutions in Union Grove take items not taken at the recycling center, i.e. fluorescent tubes and 
lightbulbs and tv’s, free of charge, for Racine Co. residents.  Hinz reported the DOT salt contract for 
2015/2016 went up $1.33.  Hinz also reported that they had just finished the review and the road line up 
with Payne & Dolan and Supervisor Draskovich.  Chairman Hincz asked Draskovich to start working on the 
budget for 2016 and would like to see a five year plan.   
Private access culvert/ditch procedure- Ken Hinz stated many situations have been coming up and would 
like to see something drafted.  Chairman Hincz stated Atty. Dubis is to be involved.  Supervisor Draskovich 
asked for permission to format sample into ordinance format and have it reviewed by Atty. Dubis and then 
put back before the Board.  Hinz stated he would like something drafted for easements as well.  Atty. Dubis 
stated that the Town has always taken the position to not get involved in private water disputes.   

(f) Town Planning Recommendations-  
-Rezone- Kreger, 7312 Big Bend Rd.- Nathan Kreger present on behalf of applicant.  Supervisor Gauerke 
read the Planning Commission minutes.  Supervisor Gauerke motioned to accept Planning Commission’s 
recommendation for approval subject to the applicant voluntarily deed restricting the properties to no further 
divisions, seconded by Supervisor Draskovich:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
-Conditional Use- Parkview Sand & Gravel, 31844 Waterford Dr.- Supervisor Gauerke stated that Chairman 
Hincz and himself looked at the site from the Ludtke property and that there are huge cliffs, one that has at 
least a 50’ drop-off with no fence and that the site poses a danger to people and wildlife.  Gauerke stated 
that there is also a conflict with the setbacks.  Since there is no access from any town road, the Board 
members were encouraged to contact the Ludtke’s to get a view of the site.  Chairman Hincz indicated 
nothing has been happening at the site and it is not safe.  Planning Commission postponed to August 3rd 
Planning.  No action.  
 

7.   Old Business: 
a) Motion to ratify contract for police services with the Village of Waterford- Attorney Dubis explained that 

just a “catch-all” since the contract items were approved/signed on different days, the contract, in its 
entirety, should be ratified and attached to the contract.  Supervisor Draskovich motioned to ratify, 
seconded by Supervisor Gauerke:  3-0, 1 abstention, Hincz.  Motion carried. 

b) Fire and Rescue Contracts with Village of Waterford- Supervisor Gauerke inquired about the previous 
year’s minutes and the email from the Clerk to Village Fire Chief, Mueller, regarding the exception of 
carbon dioxide calls being billed at $250/hour/call as well as false alarms.  Board members requested that 
the Clerk email the statements to Tichigan Fire Chief, Wagner, prior to Town approving the payment.  
Supervisor Gauerke motioned to approve the contract, subject to the carbon dioxide calls being billed at 
$250/hour/call as well as false alarms being billed at $250/ hour, not to exceed three hours; seconded by 
Supervisor Draskovich:  4-0.  Motion carried.       

 
 

8. New Business:    
a) Discussion & possible action re:  phone systems- No discussion/action.  Item to be on next agenda. 
b) Discussion & possible action re:  procedures for hiring police personnel- Chairman Hincz reported that 

they know that they will need to have four full-time and possibly four part-time and that the Town 
currently has three experienced part-time wishing to be full-time.  Chairman Hincz also reported that 
they had received applications from two additional candidates, one “junior officer” and one “senior 
officer”, with excellent resumes; he told Chief to proceed with background checks on both of them.  
Chairman Hincz stated that he had requested that Sergeant Johnson and another full-time officer come 



Town Board Minutes- July 13, 2015 

up with a credentials required list.  Chairman Hincz stated he would like the Board involved and that he 
requested the Chief to review his current staff and to weed out four or five people that are not working.  
Hinz stated they need to replace the non-working employees with responsible employees who want to 
work and have a mix of more experienced and less experienced employees.  Hinz stated he would like to 
be involved with reviewing resumes as well as interviewing.  Hincz suggested that he and Planning 
Commissioner, Luick, be on a committee.  Supervisor Alvey stated it was very prudent and asked about 
time-frame.  Sgt. Johnson stated that Chief requested that he relay that he would like the hiring process 
to remain status quo; which would be the Chief and Sgt. interviewing the candidates, sometimes Chief 
doing an unexpected/unprepared interview on site if he’s present when a candidate drops a resume off.  
Sgt. explained that then they would do a simple online background check before deciding to proceed 
with the 80-hour, full background check.  Sgt. stated that after the full background check, the 
investigator would prepare a written report for the Chief.  Discussion took place on procedure order and 
who would be involved. Supervisor Draskovich motioned and Supervisor Gauerke seconded to adopt the 
following procedure: 
1.  Publish on WILENET 
2.  Review of all resumes by:  Chief, Sergeant, Hincz and Luick. 
3.  1st Interview:  Chief 
4.  Background checks start on candidates 
5.  2nd Interview:  Chief, Sergeant, Hincz and Luick. 
6.  Recommendations to Town Board 

Supervisor Gauerke inquired about Village input.  Attorney Dubis stated that they may request as the 
contract reads that they may provide input to an officer being assigned to the Village.  Vote taken:  4-0.  
Motion carried. 
c) Discussion & possible action re:  contract with Wisconsin Humane Society- Supervisor Gauerke stated 

that the increase to what is currently being paid was minimal and feels it is a good idea.  Chairman 
Hincz stated he would want the contract year to year.  Supervisor Alvey motioned to contract with the 
Wisconsin Humane Society with the amount not to exceed the $2,700/year in the first two years of the 
contract, seconded by Supervisor Gauerke:  4-0.  Motion carried. 

d) Approval to file a petition for County Bridge Aid with the County Highway Commissioner- Ken Hinz 
reported that he was requesting approval to apply for a bridge aid grant.  Hinz stated that the total 
amount would be $42,000 and that the Town would be reimbursed for half.  Hinz explained that the 
deadline to apply was Friday.  Chairman Hincz stated he should apply and he will have to budget 
accordingly.  Hincz also stated that he should apply for everything he can apply for. 
 

Forthcoming events:  Chairman Hincz thanked the Tichigan Lake Fireworks committee for a great show.  
Chairman Hinz also informed the attendees that the Tichigan Lake Lions parade was on July 26th. 
 

Supervisor Gauerke motioned to adjourn the meeting at 6:48 PM, seconded by Supervisor Draskovich:  4-0.  
Motion carried. 
  
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Heather Stratton, Deputy Clerk  


